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. GENERAL INFORMATION

Trading name

English

Certificate of business
registration No.

Charter capital
Address

Tel

Fax

Website

Securities code

:CONG TY CO PHAN DPONG HAI BEN TRE

: DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BENTRE

: 1300358260, first issued 02/04/2003, changed 18™ dated 18/02/2020

: 559.957.830.000 VND

Lot Alll, Giao Long Industrial Zone, An Phuoc Ward,
Chau Thanh District, Ben Tre Province

: 0275.3611.666 - 0275.3611.777

: 0275.3635.222 - 0275.3611.222

- www.dohacobentre.com.vn

: DHC
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=3 2003

Dong Hai was established
according to the decision
of 4278/QD-UB Ben Tre
province. The predecessor
of the company was the
packaging plant, State
enterprise in  Ben Tre
Fishery Sector.

=3 2011

Dong Hai held ceremony
and officially put into
operation of Giao Long
paper factory (phase 1) and
Packaging Factory 02.

=3 2017

Increased charter capital
from 255.846.030.000
VND to 344.597.690.000
VND by issuing shares to
pay dividends and shares
to existing shareholders.

=3 2018

Increased charter capital
from 344.597.690.000
VND to 413.515.490.000
VND by issuing shares to
pay dividends in 2017.

=3 2008

Dong Hai became public
company according to the
announcements of the State
Securities Committee.

=3 2015

Dong Hai moved the
company's headquarters to
Lot Alll Giao Long
Industrial Zone, An Phuoc
Ward, Chau Thanh
District, Ben Tre Province.

=3 2019

Dong Hai put Giao
Long factory Phase 2
into official operation.

Increased charter capital
to 447.975.260.000
VND by issuing shares
to existing shareholders.

Increased charter capital
to 537.567.830.000
VND by by issuing
shares to pay 20%
dividends in 2018.

At the end of the year,
Dong Hai issued ESOP
2.239.000 shares, raising
its charter capital up to
559.957.830.000 VND.

THE PROCESS OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

=3 2009

Dong Hai was officially
listed and traded on the HO
CHI MINH CITY Stock
Exchange with the stock
code DHC.

=3 2016

The company is
implementing the project of
Giao Long phase 2 with a
capacity of 660 tons per day.
Expected to be completed
and go into operation in
2019.

=3 2020

Approved the Resolution of
the Board of Director No.
08/NQ-HBQT dated
23/03/2020 to set up Ben
Tre Packaging One
Member Company Limited
as a subsidiary, under Dong
Hai Joint Stock Company
of Ben Tre to implement
the project of Packaging
Factory No. 1.

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN




TYPICAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Certificate of Vietnamese brand product integration into WTO

Gold Cup for Vietnamese brand products into WTO

Certificate of top 100 leading brands in Vietnam - 2008

Gold Cup for leading brands in Vietnam - Vietnam Brand Magazine

Certificate of Prestige Quality Brand - 2009

Gold Medal Title: Vietnamese Quality - Standard Conformity -2013

Certificate of trusted supplier in Vietnam - 2009

Gold Cup Brand - Products - Prestige - Quality - 2008

The Government's emulation flag is the Excellent Unit in the emulation movement in 2018
Top 50 most effective businesses in 2019 - Investment Bridge

The Government's emulation flag is the Excellent Unit in the emulation movement in 2019

Cortificatr
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. LOCAL BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

Lines of Business

Industry Name Industry Code
1 Manufacture pulp, paper and paperboard 1701 (Main)
Manufacture corraged paper,
2 Jeapap 1702
packaging from paper and
paperboard
3 Printing and services related to printing 1811; 1812

Area of operation

The company operates mainly in the southern region, especially the three key economic regions
of the country, namely the Mekong Delta South, Ho Chi Minh City and the Southeast. This is a
region with rapid economic growth, with many manufacturing and processing industries,
leading to a high demand for paper and packaging.

Vi tri cac Khu Cong nghiép

TINH TIEN GIANG
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’ MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

GENERAL OF SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EOARD OF SUPEEVISORS
BOARD OF MANAGERS
| |
DEFUTY GENERAL MANAGER DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER
HIALAN CIAD FINANCIAL BUSINESSIN BUSINESSIN PACKAGING EEN TRE
RESOURCE LONG ACCOUNTING PACKACING PAPER FACTORY PACKAGING
DEPARTMENT FACTORY DEPARTMENT NO 2 COMPANY
Subsidiary/Associated company
: : idiary:
Associated company: Subs .
pany Ben Tre Packaging One Member Company

Giao Long New Port Joint Stock Company
Address: 126 Long Thanh Hamlet, Giao Long
Ward, Chau Thanh District, Ben Tre Province.
Certificate of Business Registration No.:
13009990134

Capital contribution: 2.600.000.000 VND,
equivalent to 26% of the voting right.

Limited

Address: Lot AIV-8, AIV-9, Giao Long
Industrial Zone, An Phuoc Ward, Chau Thanh
District, Ben Tre Province.

Certificate of Business Registration No.:
1301091115 first issueded 28/04/2020, changed
1% dated 15/01/2021.

Capital contribution: 50.000.000.000 VND,

equivalent to 100% of the voting right.

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE 12
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The main goals of the company ‘

The main goals: “Develop into a large enterprise to take 02 kraft paper - carton packages as a
development center”. Looking for new partners to expand the market and increase market share in
the industrial paper segment. Motto of action: "Close production process develop capacity scale -

improve business efficiency".

Medium and long term development strategy

In the long term, the company aims to
improve production technology, improve
product quality, reduce production costs,
lower production costs. In addition, the
company also focuses on researching the
development of environmentally-friendly

recyclable prod while meeting the
consumption trend and contributing to
consolidating the company's development
foundation. Promote the expansion of the

domestic market, promote and build the
DOHACO brand in order to increase the
competitiveness of the product to domestic and
foreign competitors. In addition, the company
also focused on finding opportunities to export
to the markets in the region. Build human
resources development strategy through
recruitment and training, improve skills for
workers, develop management skills.




Board of Directors and the Board of
Managements are especially interested,
always well bahaved and take practical
actions with environment, social and
community issues.

Targets
Sustainable
Development

Compliance  with Environment
Protection Law and other
requirements related to  the

Improve the system of
compensation,  remuneration,
social policies to improve the
quality of life for employees of
the Company. Encourage the
participation of all individuals
in volunteerism as well as the
direction and promotion of
thinking towards sustainable
development.

Company’s environment impacts.

Developed in parallel with the
responsibility of protecting the
environment and rational use of
natural resources.

Invest in a high-quality wastewater
treatment system to protect the living
environment for living creatures and
communities around.

Concern for the lives of employees,
organization of emulation movements,
mass organizations, social activities.

Actively supporting and participating in
social activities, volunteering and
local charity activities, contributing to

Truong Sa, Hoang Sa



. RISKS

Economic risk

The Covid-19 had a serious impact on world
economic growth, according to the International
Monetary Fund (IMF), the world's GDP growth rate
in 2020 was - 4.4%. However, Vietnam is one of the
few countries in the world and is the only country in
the ASEAN to achieve positive growth. According
to the General Statistics Office in 2020, Vietnam's
gross domestic product (GDP) will grow 2.91%
compared to 2019, the total paper consumption of
the whole industry is estimated at 5,448 million
tons, a slight growth 0, 2%. Paper export reached
1.75 million tons, in value reached nearly 2.0 billion
USD and grew by 76.5%, achieving a high growth
in both quantity and value in the period 2015 - 2020.
This is positive signals for businesses operating in
the paper industry. However, due to the complicated
developments of the Covid-19, in order to limit
economic risks, Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of
Ben Tre must always update and grasp the domestic
and international situation in time, to be able to track
the changes from which to propose suitable
strategies for each period.

Competitive risk

In the period of 2019-2025, many projects of some enterprises in the same industry such as Tan Mai
Paper Joint Stock Company, Miza Joint Stock Company, Hoang Ha Paper Joint Stock Company,... will
put into operation, leading to the whole industry output of kraft paper can reach 2.31 million tons/year
by 2026. In addition, more and more FDI inflows into Vietnam's paper industry in recent years will
make competition among businesses becomes more fierce. DHC's advantage is that Giao Long phase 2
goes into operation earlier than competitors, but in the long run, its market share may be narrowed
because other projects can operate more efficiently and at a more reasonable price. In order to limit the
competitive risk of the paper industry, Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of Ben Tre needs to be
proactive in managing the operation system, always updating the consumption trends of customers,
thereby improving product quality, maximize profits for the company.

15 ANNUAL REPORT 2020




Legal risk

As a public company, DHC's activities are
directly influenced by the Enterprise Law,
Securities Law as well as the Labor Code and a
number of other relevant legal documents. The
Securities Law (2019) and the Enterprise Law
(2020) were enacted by the National Assembly
and officially came into effect on January 1,
2021. Public companies will have to change a
lot in corporate governance, information
disclosure to increase transparency to ensure the
legitimate rights and interests of investors.

Along with global integration, Vietnam has
been and will participate in many world
economic organizations, leading to change in
the legal system of our country to conform to
international practices. To minimize legal risks,
the Company needs to continuously update and
comply with legal regulations to avoid

violations leading to damage to the Company.
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’ RISKS

Raw material risks

In 2021, China will impose a complete ban on
imports of solid waste, including recovered
paper (RCP), which will change the global pulp,
paper paper
Manufacturers are forced to change their access

and industry  structure.
policy for recovered paper (RCP) and recycled
pulp, leading to an increase in costs. From the
Americas and Europe to India, Vietnam,
Indonesia and Thailand,

affected.

every market is
It can be seen that the paper
manufacturing industry depends heavily on
input materials, but the price of OCC paper
accounts for over 50% of the total production
and business costs of the Company. To be able
to operate effectively the company needs a huge
source of raw materials when the Giao Long
phase 2 has to operate at full capacity to ensure

the payback.

To limit the risk of input materials, the company
needs to have specific plans to supply raw
materials for each factory. Besides, the
Company also needs to find more sources of
purchasing foreign materials to ensure timely
supply when there is a shortage of domestic

materials.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Exchange rate risks

The most important raw material for paper
production is OCC paper, which accounts for
over 50% of the total production and business
costs, but DHC is still having to buy from
abroad, because domestic demand is not enough
(only about 50% - 60%).
Company's production costs will be affected by

Therefore, the

exchange rates.

By the end of 2020, the VND / USD exchange
rate is still stable, but with the fact that Vietnam
is included in the list of currency manipulation
countries by the US Department of Commerce,
it will partly affect the exchange rate of VND
compared to US dollars in the near future.
Therefore, in order to minimize the exchange
rate risk, DHC needs to continuously monitor
and analyze the exchange rates, giving suitable
strategies in each period of the Company.
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Interest rate risk

The structure of DHC's liabilities is mainly from short-term and long-term financial lease
loans and liabilities, accounting for nearly 48.93% of total liabilities. It can be seen that any
small fluctuation in interest rates will affect DHC's production and business activities.
Although the current lending interest rate is not high, as well as DHC's financial leverage is
at a safe level, the Company needs to continuously monitor interest rates to avoid risks of
interest rate fluctuations affecting its operations.

Other risks

In addition to the mentioned risks, other unpredictable risks that can affect the company's
production and profits such as fire, disease, flood, ... Especially when the Covid-19
pandemic is still complicated, the company always has to be proactive in preventing and
formulating security and medical measures. The company regularly propagates the
company's employees to grasp and take timely preventive measures to reduce damage to
people and property.

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE
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SITUATION OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Unit: Million VND

TARGET 2019 2020 % up and down
Net Revenue 1.429.886 2.887.571 101,94%
Cost of goods sold 1.126.524 2.339.353 107,66%
Net operating profit 208.992 406.819 94,66%

Profit after tax 182.403 391.924 114,87%

In 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic had a negative impact on the whole economy in general
and DHC itself in particular. Overcoming all difficulties and challenges, all employees and
the Executive Board of the Company have achieved encouraging results. Specifically, net
revenue recorded a growth of 101.94% compared to 2019. Profit after tax increased by
114.87% compared to 2019.

3.500

3.000

2.500

2.000

Billion VND

1.500 1.430

1.000

500

Year

mmm  Net Revenue mmm Cost of goods sold Net operating profit
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THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

Mr. Le Ba Phuong

Date of birth 20/11/1964
Nationality Vietnamese
Qualification Bachelor of Economics

Time Position

11/1987 - 07/2012 Worked at Ben Tre Seafood Import-Export Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors / Deputy General Director of Dong

08/2012 - 07/2013 )
Hai Ben Tre

Member of the Board of Directors / General Director of Dong Hai Ben

07/2013 - 06/2014
Tre

Chairman of the Board of Directors / General Director of Dong Hai Ben
Tre

06/2014 - 31/07/2020

01/08/2020 - now Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors / General Director of

Dong Hai Ben Tre

Ms. Ho Thi Song Ngoc

Date of birth 11/02/1983
Nationality Vietnamese
Qualification Bachelor of Economics

Time Position

Clerical - administrative staff of the HCNS - Dong Hai Joint Stock
Company of Ben Tre

09/2005 - 08/2006

Receiving and deploying orders from the Department of Planning and

09/2006 - 03/2008
Investment of Dong Hai Ben Tre

04/2008 - 08/2010 Deputy General Director - Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of Ben Tre

09/2010 - 04/2012 Sales Director - Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of Ben Tre

05/2012 - 05/2017 Member of the Board of Directors / Deputy General Director of Dong Hai
Ben Tre

05/2017 - 04/2020 Deputy General Director of Dong Hai Ben Tre

- Deputy General Director of Dong Hai Ben Tre

0472020 - now -Director of Ben Tre Packaging One Member Company Limited

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE




Mr. Luong Van Thanh

Date of birth 12/11/1962
Nationalitiy Vietnamese
Qualification Bachelor of Economics

Time Position

Deputy Head of Technical Planning Department of Construction and

11/1986 - 09/1999 Construction Materials Company

Development Investment Manager - District 2 Housing Development

09/2003 - 10/2003 and Management Company, Ho Chi Minh City

Head of Management - District 2 Housing Development and

11/2008 - 0772012 Management Company, Ho Chi Minh City

08/2012 - 06/2014 Deputy General Director of Dong Hai Ben Tre

06/2014 - 05/2017 Member of the BOD/Deputy General Director of Dong Hai Ben Tre

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors / Deputy General Director of

05/2017 - 31/07/2020 Dong Hai Ben Tre

Chairman of the Board of Directors / Deputy General Director of Dong

08/2020 - now Hai Ben Tre

Ms. Le Thi Hoang Hue

Date of birth 09/03/1973

Nationality Vietnamese

Qualification Bachelor of Economics

1994 - 1996 Credit Officer of Ben Tre Industry and Trade Bank

1996 - 2003 Eﬁgg:%/g(;rrﬁg;ry of accounting department of Ben Tre Frozen Seafood
2003 - 2009 Chief Accountant of Ben Tre Seafood Joint Stock Company

2009 - 05/2013 gt%i?(cgaﬁﬁcountant Department of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint
07/2013 - now Chief Accountant of Dong Hai Ben Tre

23 ANNUAL REPORT 2020




THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(As of 31/12/2020)

Member Position Number of shares Ownership

ratio
1 Mr. Luong Van Thanh Chairman 3.988.000 7,12%
2 Mr. Le Ba Phuong Vice Chairman 4.500.008 8,04%
3 Mr. Le Quang Hiep Member 2.895.308 517%
4 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Nghia Member 2.150.007 3,84%
5 Mr. Macro Martinelli Member 130.000 0,23%

Mr. Luong Van Thanh

(The Board of Directors profile)

Mr. Le Ba Phuong

(The Board of Directors profile)

Mr. Le Quang Hiep

Date of Birth
Nationality

Qualification

22/08/1955
Vietnamese

Bachelor

Time

Position
Deputy Head of Technical Department of Ho Chi Minh City

1983 - 1985 plastic State-owned enterprise

1985 - 1994 Director of Ho Chi Minh City plastic State-owned enterprise

1994 - 2004 Director of Ho Chi Minh City Do Thanh Plastic Company

2004 - NowW Chairman of the Board of Director/ General Director of Do
Thanh Technology Corporation

2007 - now Member of the Board of Directors of Dong Hai Ben Tre

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE



Mr. Nguyen Thanh Nghia

Date of birth 27/11/1963
Nationality Vietnamese
Qualification Bachelor
1987 - 03/1992 Officer of Seaprodex Credit Finance Company
Officer of Ho Chi Minh City Seafood Import and Export

04/1992 - 11/1993
Company

Deputy Head, Head of Department of Ho Chi Minh City Seafood
Import and Export Company

12/1993 - 04/2001

President of the Board of Members / Director of Dai Thien Loc

2001 - 05/2007 .
Steel One Member Limited Company

Member of the Board of Directors of Ben Tre Seafood Import-

06/2012 - 08/2013 .
Export Joint Stock Company.

Chairman of the Board of Directors/ General Director of Dai Thien
Loc Corporation

05/2012 - 05/2017 Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Dong Hai Ben Tre
05/2017 - now Member of the Board of Directors of Dong Hai Ben Tre

06/2007 - now

Mr. Macro Martinelli

Date of birth 11/12/1978
Nationality Swiss
Qualification Bachelor

Time Position

08/1998 - 12/1999 Officer of Credit Suisse Bank Switzerland
Portfolio management of Generale du

01/2000 - 09/2000 Luxembourg Bank

10/2000 - 07/2013 Director of Turicum Investment Management AG
08/2013 - 04/2016 Portfolio management of Daragon Capital Group
05/2016 - now Director of Turicum Investment Management AG

25 ANNUAL REPORT 2020




THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORY

(As of 31/12/2020)
Member Position Number of shares Owne_rship
ratio
1 Ms. Doan Thi Bich Thuy Head of Supervisory Board 15.480 0,03%
2 Ms. Doan Hong Lan Member 2.060 0,004%
3 Mr. Le Hoang Phong Member 0 0,00%
Date of birth 11/05/1985
Nationality Vietnamese
Qualification Bachelor of Accounting
12/2005 - 11/2007 Accountant of Dai Thien Loc Steel Limited Company
12/2007 - 3/2011 Accountant of Dai Thien Loc Corporation
04/2011 - now Head of Supervisory Board of Dai Thien Loc Corporation 05/2017
05/2017 - now Head of Supervisory Board of Dong Hai Ben Tre

Ms Doan Hong Lan

Date of birth 17/04/1986

Nationality Vietnamese

Qualification Bachelor of Business Administration

11/2006 - 01/2009 Officer of Planning Department of Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of

Ben Tre
01/2009 - now Pesonnel officer of Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of Ben Tre 04/2012
04/2012 - now Member of the Supervisory Board

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE




Date of birth 01/01/1985
Nationality Vietnamese
Qualification Master

Time Position

Project Management Consultant of 3 Consultant And Construction
Joint Stock Company - Vietnam Electricity

2008-2014

Lecturer, Deputy Head of Department in charge of the Faculty of
Business Administration, Ho Chi Minh City University of Law

09/2015 - now

Member of the Supervisory Board
12/2020 - now

CHANGED IN THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

Position Appointment date Resignation date
01 Mr. Tatsuyuki Ota Member of BOD 25/06/2016 15/07/2020
02  Mr. Nguyen Phan Dung Member of BOD 20/05/2017 15/07/2020
03  Mr. Marco Martinelli Member of BOD 26/06/2020
04 Ms. Mai Huyen Ngoc Member of BOS 24/05/2019 10/12/2020
05 Mr. Le Hoang Phong Member of BOS 10/12/2020
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ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCE

The company's personnel situation is relatively stable. The number of employees as of
31/12/2020 is 540 people, an increase of 51 people compared to 2019 (Mainly increasing staff
for Giao Long 2).

Classification properties Rate (%)
A By level 540 100
1  Post-graduate 1 0,19
2 University, college 145 26,85
3 Intermediate 40 7,41
4 Worker 34 6,30
5  Unskilled labor 320 59,26
B By type of contract 540 100,00
1 Indefinite term 230 42,59
2 Under 01 year 04 0,74
3 01-03years 306 56,67
C By gender 540 100,00
1 Male 480 88,89
2  Female 60 11,11

HUMAN
RESOURC

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE




Welfare benefit policy

3

Social insurance, health insurance, and
unemployment insurance are deducted and paid by
the Company in accordance with the provisions of
law. The company also organizes annual tours for its
employees.

BY GENDER

HR policy

The company works 48 hours / week, the regime of
overtime work, holidays, leave and other leave must
comply with the State's regulations.

Employees are provided with uniforms, computers
and office support equipment, business trip, lunch, ...

Depending on the job position, employees are
equipped with a laptop, along with many other

regime. B Male ® Female

BY TYPE OF CONTRACT

Employee performance assessment policy

The employee performance assessment is done
periodically and according to three criteria: Job
performance - Skills - Attitude.

Through performance assessment, management
identifies potential employees to include in the
succession team planning, and at the same time plans
training for employees. This is also the basis for
building a career development roadmap for
employees.

Salary and bonus policy

DHC develops a policy of salary for employees in
accordance with working capacity and position in
charge. In addition, the Board of Directors of the
Company regularly checks, monitors, and evaluates
the productivity of employees; from there, there is an
assessment and adjustment of the salary rate for the
employees throughout the Company.

Bonus policy is applied in association with work
results, production and business efficiency in order to
motivate employees to work positively. Basically, the
Company has the following bonuses:

- Bonus for technical innovations

- Bonus for good people, good deeds

- Outstanding and outstanding individual and
collective rewards

- Bonus for new product construction

- Bonus for outstanding completion of assigned tasks
in the period

29 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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B Under 01 year 01—

m 03 years
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i Post-graduate B University, College
B Intermediate B Worker
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AVERAGE SALARY

Total number of employees Average salary

(people) (VND/person/month)
1 2017 403 7.301.366
2 2018 419 7.412.155
3 2019 489 7.589.887
4 2020 540 8.720.000

The Company focuses on good implementation of the regimes and policies for the
employees according to the provisions of the Labor Code and the current regimes and
policies of the State. The company also ensures to fully equip the necessary working
facilities for its employees, build a salary policy suitable for each person. In 2020, the
average income per employee reached more than 8.7 million VND/person/month, an
increase of 14.89% compared to 2019.

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE




INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

- In 2020, the company has put the production line of Giao Long Paper Factory 2 into stable
operation. Quantity and quality of paper achieved as planned. Officers and employees step
by step master the technology.

- For the construction of subsidiaries: Ben Tre Packaging One Member Company Limited:

+ Dong Hai has approved the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 26/NQ-HPQT dated
November 4th, 2020 on the additional capital contribution to the subsidiary. Accordingly,
the total charter capital of the company after additional contribution is 50 billion dong.

+ The company has completed legal procedures (business registration certificate, investment
certificate, land use right certificate,...). At the same time, the company is also conducting
basic construction and bidding to buy machinery and equipment for the Project.

31 ANNUAL REPORT2020




FINANCIAL SITUATIONS

RECEIVABLES

The Company's short-term receivables recorded at 563,827 billion VND in 2020, increased by
45.56% compared to 2019. In which, receivables from customers accounted for the highest
proportion in the structure of receivables of the Company and this item increased by 39.99%
compared to 2019; short-term receivables of customers included: Box - Pak Vietnam Co., Ltd.,
YFY Ha Nam Packaging Co., Ltd., Vinh Hung Dat Production - Trading - Service Co., Ltd.,;
Total receivables of three companies accounts for 20.09% of the accounts receivable from
customers, up 44.57%, 27.47% and 6.48% compared to 2019.

Other customer receivables increased sharply in 2020 with an increase of 42.86% compared to
2019, this item accounted for 79.91% of the customer receivables structure. In addition, short-
term prepayments to sellers increased by 161.44% compared to 2019.

Unit: Million VND

31/12/2019 31/12/2020
Short-term receivables 387.341 563.827
Short-term trade receivables 377.627 528.622
Short-term advances to suppliers 15.063 39.381
Other short-term receivables 1.816 2.988
Provision for short-term doubtful debts (7.165) (7.164)

DONG HAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY OF BEN TRE




Smmmmne- LIABILITIES S e -

Total debt in 2020 decreased by 105.56 billion VND, corresponding to a decrease of
10,61% compared to 2019, the decrease mainly comes from long-term debt items. In
which, long-term loans and debts decreased by 67,05%, the main reason for the decrease
was that the Company in the year paid a loan of 295 billion VND to the Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam, Tien Giang branch (this loan is subject to medium-term interest rate of
7.8% /year and is mortgaged with all assets attached to the land; main machinery and
equipment of Giao Long paper factory and all assets of Giao Long paper factory phase 2).

In addition, short-term debt recorded an increase of 34.14% compared to 2019, the main
reason is that short-term payables to sellers in the year increased by 77.81% due to the fact
that the company purchases a large amount of materials and other assets to support the
maximum operation of the new factory. As at 31/12/2020, the Company has no overdue
short-term loan.

Unit: Million VND

31/12/2019 31/12/2020

Short-term liabilities 554.942 744.385
Short-term trade payables 229.910 408.815
Short-term prepayments from customers 5.075 2.111
Taxes and other payables to government budget 31.882 14.752
Payables to employees 14.738 17.989
Short-term accrued expenses 11.724 7.803
Short-term unearned revenues 0 0
Other short-term payments 2.844 2.624
Short-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 258.769 290.182
Bonus and welfare fund 0 0
Long-term liabilities 440.000 145.000
Long-term borrowings and liabilities 440.000 145.000
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n
MAJOR FINANCIAL TARGETS B

Target Unit 2019 2020

1. Solvency index

Short-term payment ratio Rolling 1,58 1,48

Quick ratio Rolling 0,99 1,04

2. Criteria on capital structure

Debt / Total Assets Ratio %o 47,06 38,93

Debt / Equity Ratio % 88,90 63,76

3. Target on operational capacity

Inventory Turnover Loop 3,48 7,48

Asset Turnover Loop 0,73 1,31

4. Target on profitability

Profit after tax / net revenue ratio % 12,76 13,57
Profit after tax / Owners' contributed capital Ratio % 18,60 31,19
Profit after tax / Total assets Ratio %o 9,29 17,82
Profit from Operating Profit / Net Revenue % 14,62 14,09
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SOLVENCY
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Short-term payment ratio Quick ratio
The short-term payment ratio in 2020 reached VND compared to 2019 and this increase comes
1.48, a decrease compared to 2019. The main from cash - cash equivalents and a sharp
reason is the increase in short-term loans; increase in short-term receivables compared to
Specifically, short-term payables to sellers 2019, this has contributed to an increase in the
increased by 178.9 billion VND compared to quick ratio.
2019.
In general, the ratio of payment in 2020 is
Quick ratio in 2020 increased compared to maintained above 1.00 to ensure the solvency of
2019, reaching 1.04. The reason is that short- the Company's due debt obligations, as well as
term assets in 2020 increasing 229 billion ensure DHC's ability to continuously operate.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

140,00%

120,00% 115,34%

100,00%

81,40% 88,90%

80,00%

63,76%
60,00% 53,56%

47,06%

38,93%

40,00% 44,879
20,00%0
0,00%0

2017 2018 2019 2020

Debt Ratio / Total Assets

Debt Ratio / Owners' contributed capital

The debt/Total assets Ratio and debt/equity ratio continued to record reductions of 0.38 and 0.63 respectively
by 2020. By the end of the year, liabilities decreased by 105.56 billion VND while equity and total assets
recorded increases of 275.80 billion VND and 170.24 billion VND respectively compared to 2019. Debt ratio
decreased because in previous years, DHC has used most of its debt to finance Giao Long 2 paper factory. By
2020, the Company only has to use debt to reserve raw materials to meet the production of kraft paper as well
as finished packaging. In summary, the current capital structure of DHC is still at a reasonable level.
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PROFITABILITY
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In 2020, faced with negative effects caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company has overcome all
difficulties to achieve positive growth. The indicators ROS, ROA and ROE, recorded increases respectively
are: 13,57%,17,82% va 31,19%.

The operation of the Giao Long 2 paper factory has contributed to boosting production output, thereby
increasing the sales volume of the Company. Besides, the control of raw material prices has helped the
Company get positive results in 2020.

OPERATIONAL CAPACITY

The year 2020 recorded the target on operational
capacity of DHC increased significantly. In which,
inventory turnover, total assets turnover were 7.48 and
1.31 respectively. Cost of goods sold increased sharply
compared to 2019. The increase in raw material and
material costs was the main reason for the increase in
cost of goods sold of the Company. Besides, inventories
in 2020 only increased slightly, which makes inventory
turnover in 2020 increased sharply.

The operation of the Giao Long 2 paper factory has
contributed to increasing the efficiency of using assets
of the Company. Revenue in 2020 will increase
101.94% compared to 2019, from which total asset
turnover in 2020 is recorded at 1.31 loop, an increase of
79.45% compared to 2019, which shows that the
Company is using properties effectively compared to

previous years.

il s
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SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE, CHANGE IN THE OWNER’S EQUITY

As of 31/12/2020

Number of

Type of shareholders <hareholder Number of shares Value (VND)

I Domestic shareholders 1.983 40.432.867 404.328.670.000 72,21%
1  Shareholder organization 48 1.542.860 15.428.600.000 2,76%
2  Individual shareholders 1.935 38.890.007 388.900.070.000 69,45%
Il Foreign shareholders 122 15.562.916 155.629.160.000 27,79%
1  Shareholder organization 39 14.806.683 148.066.830.000 26,44%
2 Individual shareholders 83 756.233 7.562.330.000 1,35%
IIl  Treasury shares 0 0 0 0

Total 2.105 55.995.783 559.957.830.000 100,00%

Treasury shares transations: No

Other securities: No
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RESPONSIBILITY WITH ENVIRONMENT, COMMUNITY

About environmental resources

Solid waste management is implemented by investors and construction units in accordance with the
instructions and provisions in Decree No. 38/2015/CP-Nb dated April 14, 2015. Solid waste

management is as follows:

For domestic solid waste

The total number of workers working at the
factory is 540 people. According to statistics,
the volume of domestic waste is about 130 kg/
day. The factory has arranged a full number of
domestic trash in areas such as cafeterias,
offices,... ensuring to collect all domestic waste.
Besides, the factory has also signed a collection
contract with a functional unit to collect and
process according to regulations. The amount
of domestic waste is collected together with
non-hazardous production waste. In general, at
the time of the survey, the factory campus is
clean and beautiful. Up to now, the Company
has signed a contract with Ben Tre Urban
Construction Joint Stock Company to collect
and process in accordance with regulations.

For hazardous waste

The total amount of hazardous waste generated
is about 505 kg / day. Currently, the hazardous
waste generated at the factory is collected
periodically 2 times / week, the uncollected
hazardous waste to the hazardous waste
warehouse is painted to classify each type of
hazardous waste. In addition, the factory also
regularly checks the warehouse, ensuring
compliance with the guidance of Circular No.
36/2015/TT-BTNMT dated June 30, 2015.

The factory contracted No. 262020/ HDXL.CL-
DH on March 9, 2020 with Veritas
Environment Company Limited to collect and
treat hazardous waste. This is a unit with full

For production waste

According to Decree 38/2015/NDb-CP, the amount
of waste generated in production at the two
factories is quite large. On average, 60 tons of
ordinary industrial waste are generated per day.
The collection and transportation of production
waste from the production area to the warehouse is
carried out regularly by employees, not to stagnate
garbage at the workplace. The factory signed the
Contract No. 26/VXQN-DHBT on January 1,
2020 with Viet Xanh Qn Construction Trade
Services Company Limited to collect and treat the
volume of non-hazardous production waste at two
factories. In general, the collection and treatment
of non-hazardous production waste at the factory
iIs conducted regularly, the collection and
treatment unit ensure full legality in accordance
with current regulations.

functions in collecting - transporting - treating
hazardous waste according to current regulations.
In addition, the factory periodically reports to the
management agency on the collection, storage and
treatment of hazardous waste in accordance with
regulations. The factory made statistics on types
and volumes of waste according to the type of
waste registered in the hazardous waste source
owner book. In 2020, the production and business
process will still take place as planned. There are
no environmental violations and no complaints
about noise, dust or health life within the scope of
operation.
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For environment, labor and society

With the new paper factory officially put into
operation, DHC has recruited a large number of
workers to support the implementation of
production activities. The salary payment is
associated with each position, job performance
and business efficiency of the company. The
company ensures the health, safety and welfare
of employees. The company also does not
ignore the work of labor protection, equips with
personal protective equipment according to the
nature of the work; upgrades and replaces too
old machinery and equipment to avoid dangers
to workers. The company complies and fully
complies with regulations on occupational
safety and health; regularly organizes working
environment testing as well as training to
improve professional knowledge and ensure
labor safety; fostering professional skills for
production workers and general workers.
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In addition to making a profit, the Company
completely complies with the social security
policies of the local with the desire to
contribute a part of benefits to the general
development of the society. In the past year,
DHC has always cared and contributed to local
development funds and local construction
projects; actively participate in union activities,
legal education on necessary knowledge for
people; disease prevention; The company's
officers and employees also participate in
activities of green, clean, and hygienic
activities in areas near factories; participate in
charity activities, support Tet gifts for difficult
circumstances, and mid-autumn gifts for
children.
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GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF THE PAPER MARKET IN 2020

According to VPPA, total paper consumption of the whole industry is estimated at 5,448
million tons, up slightly by 0.2%. Paper export reached 1.75 million tons, in value reached
nearly 2.0 billion USD and grew by 76.5%, achieving a high growth in both quantity and
value in the period 2015 - 2020, of which, packaging paper and tissue paper export achieved
high growth in both volume and high growth rate. Tissue consumption has the strongest
growth in recent periods. However, printing, writing and copier paper will face significant
challenges in 2020: consumption decreases -5.5% and also the strongest decline in the period
2015 - 2020, especially copier paper is estimated to decrease to -30% year-on-year and is
also the first time to reduce growth in the period 2010 - 2020. The biggest challenge with
printing paper and writing paper is the massive import from Indonesia, China, and Thailand
and selling to the market at very low prices, at many times considered to be below cost, has
created fierce competition and put great pressure on domestic firms producing this product.

Paper imports of all kinds reached 2.06 million tons and increased by 2.2% over the same
period in 2019.
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ASSESSMENT OF OPERATION RESULTS

Unit: Million dong

Target In 2019 In 2020 % up/down
Net revenue 1.429.886 2.887.571 101,94%
Cost of goods sold 1.126.524 2.339.353 107,66%
Net operating profit 208.992 406.819 94,66%
Profit after tax 182.403 391.924 114,87%

In 2020, the company's revenue reached 2,887 billion VND, an increase of 101.94%
compared to 2019. This achievement is partly due to the operation of the Giao Long 2
paper factory in the third quarter of 2019, contributed to improving production output
and creating a premise for the company to boost revenue this year. The raw material
prices remained low for many consecutive months helped the Company improve its
profit margin. In 2020, net profit from operating activities will reach 406,819 billion
dong, up 94.66% compared to 2019. Profit after tax of the Company in 2020 reached
391,924 billion, up 114.87% compared to 2019.
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Advantages and Threats in 2020

A

Advantages

The EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement
(EVFTA) officially coming into effect this
year that made Vietnam’s import rate of 3%
will be removed, creating a significant
competitive advantage for Vietnamese
Packaging Enterprises when exporting to the
EU Market.

DHC has established itself as a major paper
and packaging manufacturer in the Mekong
Delta region, where industrial and
manufacturing industries are concentrated
and highly developed, with the completion
of the Giao Long 2 Factory Project.
Packaging is required for the packaging and
transportation of food, pharmaceutical, and
agricultural products.

In comparison to the Southern key economic
region (Ho Chi Minh City, Dong Nai, and
Binh Duong), DHC's operating area has less
competition because there are fewer large-
scale packaging manufacturers.

Threats

The Covid-19 pandemic has a negative impact
on the Vietnamese Economy in general and on
the Company particular in 2020. The epidemic
has disrupted the global supply chain,
resulting in a scarcity of raw materials for
manufacturing.



Financial Status

D
Status of Assets

Currency unit: million dong

2019 2020
Value Weight (%) Value Weight (%)
Short-term assets 875.293 41,40% 1.104.660 48,36%
Long-term assets 1.238.800 58,60% 1.179.669 51,64%
Total assets 2.114.093 100% 2.284.329 100%

In 2020, total assets of the Company increase 8.05% compare to 2019. In particular, the Company's
short-term assets increased by 26.20% this year compared to 2019. In 2020, the Company has
increased non-fixed bank deposits and cash equivalents by 27,22% and 30,95%. Besides, customer’s
receivables has been increased 39,99% compared to 2019. These are the items that account for a
large portion of short-term asset growth and are the primary reason for the increase in short-term
assets in 2020 compared to 2019.
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Long-term assets fell 4.77% in 2020 compared to 2019, owing primarily to 102.77 billion VND in
depreciation of fixed assets. In which, buildings and equipment account for a large proportion of
depreciation, affecting the Company's long-term assets in 2020. Because the Giao Long 2 Paper
Factory Project is now complete and operational, the Company has begun to implement asset
depreciation.
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Status of debt

Total debt in 2020 will be 10.60 percent lower than in 2019. In which the Company's long-term debt\
decreased by 295 billion VND, a decrease of 67.05% compared to 2019. The reason for the decrease

was that the Company paid a 295 billion dong loan to the Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam - Tien Giang Branch during the year, and the remaining loan for this bank was 145
billion dong.

Short-term debt increased by 189,443 billion dong in 2020 compared to 2019. Payables to sellers and

short-term financial loans, in particular, increased by 178,906 billion dong and 31.41 billion dong,
&hese accounts take a significant portion of the increase in short-term debts. /

Currency Unit: Million Dong

2020
Weight (%) Weight (%)
Short-term debt 554.942 55,78% 744.385 83,70%
Long-term debt 440.000 44,22% 145.000 16,30%
Total liabilities 994.942 100,00% 889.385 100,00%
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Improvements in this year

Maintaining the Quality Management System
(ISO 9001:2015 and 14001:2015). The
company trains employees to improve skills
appropriate for each job position. Recruitment
continues to ensure that the Company's
demand for direct labor for production and
business activities is fully met.

Development plan in the future
(. ]

Creating a healthy, comfortable, safe, and
caring working environment that cares for
employees' material and spiritual lives, thereby
creating a driving force to increase labor
efficiency and contribute to the business's
development.

- Plans for 2021 of Dong Hai Joint Stock Company of Ben Tre

+  Revenue: 3.500 billion dong
+  Profit after tax: 399 billion dong

- Completed the construction and installation of machinery and equipments for Ben Tre
Packaging One Member Company Limited. The machinery will be tested in 2021 and will

be officially operational in early 2022.
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Production and Business Plan in 2021
D

Production Operation:

- Improve product quality management to avoid customer complaints and feedback.

- Make a plan for machinery and equipment maintenance so that the machine can run smoothly.
- Manage the factory's raw material usage standards well.

- Plan for raw paper storage and proper paper preservation.

Works in 2020

Sales Operation:

- Identifying and capitalizing on potential new customers for Giao Long Factory. Selling
goods is associated with debt collection, not with the creation of bad debts or the
collection of bad debts.

- Maintain output and turnover of existing customers, increase output of existing
customers, and avoid losing large customers.

Purchasing Operation:

- Ensure that the raw material supply is never depleted.
- Backup equipments is always available when needed.
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ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S
OPERATION

General assessment

2020 will be a difficult and challenging year for the Viethamese economy and the Vietnamese paper industry
as a result of the COVID-19 epidemic. Market fluctuations and economic operating policies have changed as
a result of the pandemic, which has had a significant impact on the Company's production and business
activities.

To overcome this challenge, the Company's Board of Directors and Board of Managers are always
committed to their assigned responsibilities, demonstrating all roles and responsibilities in leadership and
management. Furthermore, the Company is always the focus and support of agencies, provincial
departments, financial and credit institutions, business partners, and so on.

Prodution and Business Results in 2020

Percentage of

Achieve in  Planin 2020  Achieve in Percentage of 2
200 202 Achieve in zoﬁ?\'fml in
2020/Plan in 2020
2020
Net Revenue 1.429.886 2.680.000 2.887.571 107,75% 202%
Profit after tax 182.403 300.000 391.924 130,64% 214%

Net revenue reached 2,887 billion VND as of December 31st 2020, a 102% increase over 2019 and a 7.75%
increase over the year plan. This accomplishment is due in part to the operation of the Giao Long 2 Paper
factory in the third quarter of 2019, which increased production output, laying the groundwork for the
company to increase revenue this year.

Profit after tax in 2020 will be 114% higher than in 2019 and 30.64% higher than in the previous year. These
are encouraging results for the Board of Directors as well as all Company employees who overcame obstacles
and performed admirably during the Covid pandemic.




EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF MANAGERS BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors oversees the General Director's operational activities on a regular and ongoing
basis. The Board of Directors concentrated on monitoring compliance with the provisions of the Enterprise
Law, the Company Charter, the Corporate Governance Regulations for the General Director's operations,
monitoring the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors' plan expenditures, the
implementation of the 2020 plan for the market, customers, and goods consumption, the use of capital, the
organization of company personnel,...

The company’s activities will continue to grow steadily in 2020, with many positive changes. The Board of

Directors emphasizes responsibility and enthunsiasm for the assigned work, and has made signigicant
efforts to overcome the difficult period.

ORIENTATION PLAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors strictly enforces corporate governance in accordance with the corporate
governance regulations applicable to public companies, the Company’s Charter and the Corporate
Governace Regulations. Member of the Board of Directors carry out their duties and powers in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Charter and Regulations, always acting in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders.

The Board of Directors are directly supervise the Board of Managers’s activities, ensuring that the

Executive Board is able to carry out its responsibilities in accordance with the resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

Business Plan in details:
+ Revenue: 3.500 billion dong
+ Profit after tax: 399 billion dong




CORPORATE GOVERNACE REPORT

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS IN YEAR
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SUPERVISE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOS ABOUT THE BOD, THE
BOM AND SHAREHOLDERS

COORDINATION OF THE BOS ACTIVITIES WHICH THOSE OF
THE BOD, BOM AND OTHER MANAGERS
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Meetings of the Board of Directors

Number of Rate of
Members of the BOD Meetings has Meetings has  Reason for not attended Meetings
attended attended
Mr. Luong Van Thanh 14 14/14
Mr. Le Ba Phuong 14 14/14
Mr. Le Quang Hiep 14 14/14
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Nghia 14 14/14
Mr. Tatsuyuki Ota 7 7/14 Dismissed on July 15" | 2020
Mr. Nguyen Phan Dung 6 6/14 Dismissed on July 15" | 2020
Mr. Marco Martinelli 7 7/14 Appointed on June 26", 2020

Resolutions/Decisions in year

Number of
NO.  Resolution/Decesion Date Content
Approval of the Business Results Report for in
1 01/NQ-HbQT 16/01/2020 the Fourth Quarter of 2019 Report and Plan’s
Goal for the First Quarter of 2020
The contract signing with TAN CANG GIAO
2 02/NQ-HbQT 16/01/2020 LONG JOINT STOCK COMPANY has been
Approved.
Approval of O0L/TT-HPQT Statement on 2™
3 03/NQ-HBQT 16/01/2020 January about salary based on product’s unit
price
Approved bonus list for the Board of Managers,
4 04/NQ-HbQT 16/01/2020 the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors
Approved 04/TT-HDQT  Statement on
5 05/NQ-HbQT 16/01/2020 Suggestions for Rewarding for the Project
Management Board of Giao Long Paper Phase 2
Established Project Management Board of Ben
Tre Packaging Factory No.01
Approved to pay dividends in cash in the second
phase of 2019
Approval of the establishment Ben Tre
Packaging One Member Company Limited,
which is directly under Dong Hai Joint Stock
Company of Ben Tre
Approval of borrowing short-term capital to
supplement working capital in accordance with
9 09/NQ-HbQT 26/03/2020 the 2020 Business Plan at Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Viet Nam
— Tien Giang Branch
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10

Number of

Resolution/Decesion

10/NQ-HPQT

26/03/2020

Content

Approving the dismission of the Project
Management Board of Ben Tre Packaging
Factory No.01

11

11/NQ-HPQT

26/03/2020

Approval of the Business Result Report in the
First Quarter of 2020 and the Plan’s Goal in the
Second Quarter of 2020

12

12/NQ-HPQT

15/05/2020

Approval of the 2020 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders’s organizing plan

13

13/NQ-HPQT

15/05/2020

Approval of the content to be presented at the
2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

14

14/NQ-HPQT

03/06/2020

Approval of the detail estimate for the Phase 2
Giao Long Paper Project

15

15/NQ-HPQT

03/06/2020

Approved the 01/TT-HPQT on May 302020
about salary based on product unit price that
effect from June 1%2020

16

16/NQ-HPQT

10/06/2020

Approval of the content to be presented at the
2020 Annual General Meeting

17

17/NQ-HPQT

26/06/2020

Approved the appointment of Ernst and Young
Viet Nam Company Limited as auditor for the
2020 Financial Statements

18

18/NQ-HPQT

28/07/2020

Approval of the Business Result Report in the
Second Quarter of 2020 and the Plan’s Goal for
the Third Quarter of 2020

19

19/NQ-HPQT

28/07/2020

Mr.Le Ba Phuong’s Position as Chairman of the
Board of Directors was approved for dismissal,
as was Mr.Luong Van Thanh’s Position as Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Approval of the vote for Mr.Luong Van Thanh to
become Chairman of the BOD in 2017-2017 term
began on August 1% 2020

Approval of the vote for Mr.Le Ba Phuong to
become Vice Chairman of the BOD in 2017- 2017
term began on August 1% 2020.

20

20/NQ-HDQT

28/07/2020

The contract signing with Ben Tre Packaging
One Member Company Limited has been
approved

21

21/NQ-HPQT

09/09/2020

Approval of borrowing short-term capital to
supplement working capital in accordance with
the 2020 Business Plan at Bank for Investment
and Development of Viet Nam - Ben Tre Branch
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Number of Content

Resolution/Decesion

Approval of borrowing short-term capital to

supplement working capital at Shinhan Viet Nam

Approval of the content to be presented at the
2020 Extraordinary General Meeting of

23 23/NQ-HbQT 28/10/2020 Shareholders

Approval of the organization of the 2020
24 24INQ-HPQT  28/10/2020 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

Approval of the plan to purchase Thanh Cong
25 25/NQ-HPQT  04/11/2020  Epergy Service Corporation shares

Approval of a capital increase for Ben Tre
26 26/NQ-HPQT  04/11/2020 packaging One Member Company Limited

Approval of the date, time and location of the
27 27/NQ-HPQT 24/11/2020 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

Approval of the content to be presented at the
28 28/NQ-HDQT 24/11/2020 2020 Extraordinary  General Meeting of

Shareholders

Approval of borrowing short-term capital to
supplement working capital in accordance with
the 2020 Business Plan at Joint Stock

29 29/NQ-HBbQT 26/11/2020 Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Viet Nam
— Tien Giang Branch

Debt repayment guarantee on behalf of Ben Tre
Packaging One Member Company Limited, for
all debt repayment obligations related to a loan
from Ben Tre Packaging One Member Company
30 30/NQ-HPQT  26/11/2020 | jmited at Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Foreign Trade of Vietnam - Tien Giang Branch.

Approved to pay dividends in 2020 in cash to
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Meetings of the Board of Supervisor
. _____________________________________________________J

Number of Rate of Rate of Reason for not
\[o} Members of the BOS Meetings has  Meetings has voted attended
attended attended meetings
01  Mrs. Doan Thi Bich Thuy 4 4/4 100%
02 Mrs. Doan Hong Lan 4 4/4 100%
Dismissed on
03 Mrs. Mai Huyen Ngoc 4 3/4 100% December 10",
2020
Appointed on
04 Mr. Le Hoang Phong 1 1/4 100%  December 10",
2020

Superviseactivitiesofthe Board of Supervisorsaboutthe Boardof Directors,

the Board of Managers and Shareholders
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________J

The Board of Directors had held meetings throughout the provisions of Company’s Charter. The
Board of Supervisors determined that the BOD’s activities has responded quickly to the requirements
of the Company’s Production and Business activities.

The Board of Directors has issued Resolution and Decisions within the scope of its responsibility and
authority that have related with the Company’s activities. The BOD’s resolutions and decisions have
been promulgated in the proper order, with the proper authority and in accordance with the legal

The Board of Managers have executed all of the BOD’s Resolutions and Decisions, fully and seriously
executed its authority and other missions in accordance with the provisions of law and the Charter of
the Company.

Coordinationofthe Board of Supervisors activities
which those of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Managers

. ______________________________________________________________________________J
Communication with the BOD and the BOM about production status, business status, fluctuation and

recruitment manager status is frequent.

Participated in checking remains in the warehouse at the first six-months of 2020, the last six-months
of 2020 and inventorying the fixed assets. Examnie the Manage Warehouse Procedure, Purchasing
Materials — Tools — Spare Parts Procedure.

Advisories and suggestions from the BOD are always considered by the BOD and General Director
and are taken seriously by other related units.

Training about Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Training Courses provided by the policy on Corporate Governance, in which
members of the BOD, members of the BOS, the General Director, Managers, and the Company's
Secretary
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TRANSACTION, REMUNERATION AND BENEFIT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

THE BOARD OF MANAGERS AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
L

Currency Unit: Dong

Remuneration

o Total Salary in Bonus for Bonus for
ORI 2020 for BOD/BOS  5o\1/BOs  BOM in 2020
in 2020
Chairman of
01 Luong Van Thanh BOD/Vice General 939.345.293 126.000.000 200.000.000 150.000.000
Director

Vice Chairman of

02 Le Ba Phuong BOD/General 1.254.104.623 125.000.000 190.000.000 216.000.000
Director
03 Nguyen Thanh Nghia Member of BOD 97.000.000 150.000.000
04 Le Quang Hiep Member of BOD 97.000.000 150.000.000
05 Marco Martinelli Member of BOD 55.000.000 75.000.000
06 Nguyen Phan Dung Member of BOD 42.000.000 75.000.000
07 Tatsuyuki Ota Member of BOD 42.000.000 75.000.000
08 Ho Thi Song Ngoc Vicsigirt‘g:a' 626.066.937 100.000.000
09 Doan Thi Bich Thuy Chief of BOS 56.000.000 30.000.000
10 Doan Hong Lan Member of BOS 27.000.000 22.000.000
11 Le Hoang Phong Member of BOS 3.000.000 10.000.000
12 Mai Huyen Ngoc Member of BOS 36.000.000 15.000.000

Trade/Contract between Company and internal persons/related persons in 2020: None.






FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
2020






! DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre
i | - |
! 1
- Consolidated financial statements |
For the year ended 31 December 2020 C ' '

Building a better
working world




DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

CONTENTS

General information

Report of management
Independent auditors' report
Consolidated balance sheet
Consolidated income statement
Consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Pages

e O Ml = "ude a



DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre ("the Company”), is a shareholding company incorporated
under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate (“ERC")
No. 1300358280 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment ("DP!") of Ben Tre Province
on 2 April 2003, as amended subsaquently.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Ho Ghi Minh Ciy Stock Exchange (“HOSE") in
accordance with the Decision No. 58/QBD-SGDHCM issued by the HOSE on 18 June 2009.

The current principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and trading in pulp, kraft paper,
paperboard, packaging made from paper and plastic.

The Company and its branch head office are located at Lot Alll, Giao Long Industrial Zone, An é

Phuoc Commune, Chau Thanh District, Ben Tre Province, Vietnam. 7
"

BOARD OF DIRECTORS R

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are: ’g
<

Mr. Luong Van Thanh Chairman

Mr. Le Ba Phuong Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Nghia ~ Member

Mr. Le Quang Hiep Member

Mr. Tatsuyuki Ota Merber resigned on 15 July 2020

Mr. Nguyen Phan Dung Member resigned on 15 July 2020

Mr. Marco Marinelly Member appointed on 26 June 2020

' BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are:

Ms. Doan Thi Bich Thuy Head of the Board of Supervisors

Ms. Doan Hong Lan Member

Mr Le Hoang Phong Member appointed on 10 December 2020
Ms. Mai Huyen Ngoc Member resigned on 10 December 2020
MANAGEMENT

Members of the Managament during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Le Ba Phuong General Director

Mr. Luong Van Thanh Deputy General Director
Ms. Ho Thi Sang Ngoec Deputy General Director
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Mr Le Ba
Phuong.

AUDITORS -

~The-auditor-of the Company is Emst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of the results of its
consolidated operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory
requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

T & youwng Vietnam Limited
B & 2.0 ..\\

#\ERNST &Y(0
. VIET NAM

Deputy General Director

Audit Practicing Registration Certificate Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 1588-2018-004-1 No. 4635-2018-004-1

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

29 March 2021

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited






- O

-

| et §

DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre 'BO1-DN/HN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 31 December 2020
VND
Code | RESOURCES Notes Ending balance | Beginning balance
300 | C. LIABILITIES 889,384,700,833 994,941,561,611
310 | I. Current liabilities 744,384,700,833 554,941,561,611
311 1. Short-term trade payables 14 408,814,919,189 229,909,361,250
312 2. Short-term advances from
customers 15 2,110,769,973 5,075,258,490
313 3. Statutory obligations 16 14,752,240,513 31,882,257,679
314 4. Payables to employees 17,988,892,031 14,738,216,665
315 5. Short-term accrued expenses 17 7,803,334,674 11,723,914,866
318 6. Short-term unearned revenues 109,090,909 -
319 7. Other short-term payables 18 2,623,698,422 2,843,474,836
320 8. Short-term loans 19 290,181,755,122 258,769,077,825
330 | Il. Non-current liability 145,000,000,000 440,000,000,000
338 1. Long-term loan 19 145,000,000,000 440,000,000,000
400 | D. OWNERS’ EQUITY 1,394,944,316,463 | 1,119,152,046,901
410 | . Equity 20 | 1,394,944,316,463 | 1,119,152,046,901
411 1. Share capital 559,957,830,000 559,957,830,000
411a - Shares with voting rights 559,957,830,000 559,957,830,000
412 2. Share premium 235,247,935,803 235,247,935,803
418 3. Investment and development .
fund 39,241,141,068 30,161,760,258
421 4. Undistributed earnings 560,497,409,592 293,784,520,840
421a - Undistributed earnings up to
the end of prior year 168,573,821,706 111,381,060,782
421b - Undistributed earnings of
current year 391,923,587,886 182,403,460,058
440 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
OWNERS’ EQUITY 2,284,329, . 2,114,093,608,512

al/

Le Thi Hoang Hue
Chief Accountant

€ Ba Phuong

Pham The Tai S
General Director

Preparer

29 March 2021



DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre B02-DN/HN
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2020
VND
Code | ITEMS Notes Current year Previous year
01 | 1. Revenues from sale of goods 21.1 | 2,887,713,712,689 | 1,430,030,972,251
02 | 2. Deductions 211 (143,188,500) (144,865,700)
10 | 3. Net revenues from sale of goods | 21.1 | 2,887,570,524,189 | 1,429,886,106,551
11 | 4. Costs of goods sold 22 |(2,339,353,334,338) ((1,126,524,279,929)
20 (5. Gross profit from sale of goods 548,217,189,851 303,361,826,622
21 | 6. Financial income 21.2 9,949,607,631 3,809,918,583
22 | 7. Financial expenses 23 (40,710,822,367) (30,207,216,323)
23 In which: Interest expense (38,736,882,563) (29,931,705,195)
24 | 8. Shares of profit of associate 12 1,115,787,433 815,843,853
25 | 9. Selling expenses 24 (87,998,170,475) (49,009,092,405)
26 | 10. General and administration
expenses 24 (23,754,855,757) (19,778,850,170)
30 | 11. Operating profit 406,818,736,316 208,992,430,160
31 | 12. Other income 26 3,995,596,254 12,188,273,828
32 | 13. Other expenses 26 (753,786,831) (29,511,039)
40 | 14. Other profit 26 3,241,809,423 12,158,762,789
50 | 15. Accounting profit before tax 410,060,545,739 221,151,192,949
51 | 16. Current corporate income tax
expense 271 (18,136,957,853) (38,747,732,891)
60 | 17. Net profit after tax 391,923,587,886 ‘i32,403,460,058
61 | 18. Net profit after tax attributable to
shareholders of the parent 391,923,587,886 182,403,460,058
70 | 19. Basic earnings per share 20.4 6,999 3,193
71 | 20. Diluted earnings per share 204 6,999 3,193

\
Pham The Tai\ Q
Preparer !

Le Thi Hoang Hue

Chief Accountant

29 March 2021
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre B03-DN/HN

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

VND
Code | ITEMS Notes Current year Previous year
50 | Netincrease in cash and cash
equivalents for the year 45,756,143,605 127,802,795,506
60 | Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 156,334,923,342 28,532,090,163
61 | Impact of exchange rate fluctuation (80,932) 37,673
70 | Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year 4 202,090,986,015 156,334,923,342

Le Thi Hoang Hue Le Ba Phuong
Chief Accountant General Director

29 March 2021
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 Dacember 2020 and for the year then ended

21

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre ("the Company"), is a shareholding company
incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietham pursuant to the Enterprise
Registration Ceriificate ("ERC") No. 1300358250 issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment ("DPI"} of Ben Tre Province on 2 April 2003, as amended subsequently.

The Company's shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minth City Stock Exchange (“HOSE®) in
accordance with the Decision No. 58/QBD-SGDHCM issued by the HOSE on 18 June 2009.

The current principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and trading in pulp, kraft
paper, paperboard, packaging made from paper and plastic.

The Company’s head office is located at Lot A, Giao Long Industrial Zone, An Phuse
Commune, Chau Thanh District, Ben Tre Province, Vietnam.

The number of Group’s employees as at 31 December 2020 was: 539 (31 December 2019
4889).

Corporate structure

The Company invested in 1 subsidiary is Ben Tre Packaging One Member Company
Limited.

Ben Tre Packaging One Member Company Limited is @ one-member limited company
incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant fo the ERC No. 1301081115
issued by the DPI of Ben Tre Province on 28 Aprii 2020. The head office is located at Lot
AIVE, AIVY, Giao Long Industrial Zone, An Phuoc Commune, Chau Thanh District, Ben Tre
Province, Vietnam. The current principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and
trading in pulp, kraft paper, paperboard, packaging made from papsr and plastic.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company holds 100% voting rights in this subsidiary.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting standards and system

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary ("the Group”)
expressed in Vietnam dong (“VND¥), are prepared in accordance with Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the
Ministry of Finance as per;

« Decision No. 148/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and
Promuigation of Four Viethamese Accounting Standards (Series 1);

e Decision MNo. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Sarias 2);

¢+ Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the lsstance and
Promulgation of Six Viethamese Accounting Standards (Series 3);

e« Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the lIssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Acceounting Standards (Series 4); and

» Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Jssuance and
Promulgation of Four Viethamese Accounting Standards (Series 5).

10
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOg-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued})
as at 31 Decaember 2020 and for the year then ended

21

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Accounting standards and system (continued)

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, including their utilisation
are not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnany's accounting principles,
procedures and practices and furthermore are not intended to present the financial position
and consolidated results of operations and consolidated cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounrting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other
than Vietnam,

Applied accounting documentation systam
The Company’s applied accounting documentaticn system is the General Journal system.

Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also the Group’s
accounting currency.

Fiscal year

The Group’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its financial statements starts on 1
January and ends on 31 December.

Basls of consoifdation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 2020.

A subsidiary are fully consoclidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continued to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-company balances, income and expenses and unreafised galns or losses resulting
from intra~company transactions are eliminated in full.

impact of change in the cwnership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
recorded in undistributed earnings.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term deposits,
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in vaiue.

Accounts receivable

Receivables are presented in the consclidated financial statements at the carrying amounts
due from customers a_nd other debtors, after provision for doubtful debts.

The provision for doubtful debts represents amounts of outstanding receivables at the
consolidated balance sheet date which are doubtful of being recoverad. Increases or
dacreases to the provision balance are recorded as general and administrative expense in
the consolidated income statement.

171
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

3.3 fnvemories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition, and net realisable value.

Net reaiisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs to compiete and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

The perpetual method is used to record inventories, which are valued as follows:

Raw materials and - cost of purchase on a weighted average basis.
merchandise :

Finished goods and work-in - cost of direct materials and lzbour plus zftributable
process manufacturing overheads based on the nomal

operating capacity on weighted average basis.
Provision for obsolete inventories

An inventory provision is created for the estimated loss arising due fo the impairment
(through diminution, damage, absolescence, etc.) of raw materials, finished goods, and
other inventories owned by the Group, based on appropriate evidence of impairment
available at the balance sheet date.

Increases cr decreases to the provision balance are recorded into the cost of gocds sold
account in the consolidated income statement.

34 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The costs of tangible fixed assets comprise its purchase prices and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the tangible fixed assets to working condition for their infended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are aclded to the carrying amount of
the assefs and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the consolidated balance sheet and any gain or loss resulting from their
disposal is included In the consolidated income sfatement.

3.5 Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The costs of intangible fixed assets comprise its purchase prices and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the intangible fixed assets to working condition for their
intended use,

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of
the assets and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated amortisation are
removed from the consolidated balance shest and any gain or loss resulting from their
disposal is included in the consolidated income statement,

3.6 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of fangible fixed assets and amortisation of intangible fixed assets are
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildings and structures 5 - 35 years
Machinery and equipment 3 -20 years
Means of transportation 5- 10 vears
- Office equipment 5 -8 years
Computer software 5 years
Others 8 years

12
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOY-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

3.8

3.9

310

3.11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds and are recorded as expense during the year in which they are

incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as explained in the following -

paragraph.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, constructior or production of
an asset that necessarily take a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Construction in process

Construction in progress represents assets purchasing which have not yet been completed
as at the balance sheet date.

Prepald expenses

Prepaid expenses are reporied as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the
consolidated balance sheet and amoriised over the year for which the amounts are paid or
the year in which economic bensfits are generated in relation to these expenses,

Prepaid for land rental

The prepaid land rental represents the unamortised balance of advance payment made in
accordance with lease contracts signed after 2003. Such prepaid rental is classified as long-
term prepaid expenses for allocation to the consolidated income statement over the
remaining lease year, according to Circular 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 issued by
the Ministry of Finance.,

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of a
business combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, equily instruments
issued, and liakilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange pius any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in & business combination are measured iniially at fair values at the date
of business combination.

Investments
Investment in an associate

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. An associate is an entify inh which the Group has significant influence that is
neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The Group generally deems they have significant
influence if they have cver 20% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance shest at cost
plus post acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of an associate. Goodwill
arising on acquisition of the associate is inciuded in the canying amount of the investment.
Goodwil! is not amortised and subject to annual review for impairment. The consolidated
income statement refiects the share of the postacquisition results of operation of an
associate.

The share of post-acquisition profit of an associate is presented on face of the consolidated
income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying

amount of the investment. Dividend receivable from an associate reduces the carrylng
- -amount of the investment. :

13
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOG-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

3.171

.12

3.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Investments (continued)
Investment in an associate {continued)

The financial statements of an associate are prepared for the same reporting year and use
the same accounting policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjusiments are made {o
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Held-to-maturity investmenis

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at their acquisition costs. After initial recognition,
held-to-maturity investments are measured at recoverable amount. Any impairment loss
incurred is recognised as expense in the consolidated financial statements and deducted
against the value of such investmants.

Provision for diminution in value of invesiments

Provision of the investment is made when there are reliable evidences of the diminufion in
value of those investments at the balance sheet date.

Increases and decreases to the provision balance are recorded as finance expense in the
consolidated income statement.
Payabies and accrued expenses

Payables and asccrued expenses are recognised for amounts to be pald in lhe future for
goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Foreign currency rransactmns

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s reporting currency of (VND) are recorded
at the actual transaction exchange rates at transaction dates which are determinad as

follows:

- Transactions resulting in receivables are recorded at the buying exchange rates of the
commercial banks designated for collection; and

- Transactions resulting in liabilities are recorded at the selling exchange rates of the
transaction of commercial banks designated for payment.

At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the actual transaction exchange rates at the consolidated balance sheet dates which are
determined as follows:

- Monetary assets are translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where
the Group conducts transactions regularly; and

- Monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commercial bank
where the Group conducts transactions reguiarly.

All foreign exchange differences incurred during the year and arisen from the revaluation of
monetary accounts denominated in foreign currency at year-end are taken to the
consolidated income staternent

14
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TG THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

3.14

3.15

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Appropriation of net profit

Net profit after tax is available for appropriation to shareholders after approval by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and after making appropriation to reserve
funds in accordance with the Company's Charter and Vietnamese regulatory requirements.

» Investment and development fund

This fund is set aside for use in the Group's expansicen of its operation or in-depth
investments.

» Bonus and walfare fund

This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouragement,
comman benefits and improvement of the employees' benefits, and presentaed as a
liability on the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, excluding trade discount, rebate and sales
return. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer, usually upon the delivery of the goods.

Interest

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the
asset) unless collectability is in doubt.

Taxation
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation autharities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the balance sheet
date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the conslidated income statement, except
when it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is
also deait with in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
for the Group to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Group
intends to setfle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their camying amount for
consclidated financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilties are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except where the
deferred tax Lability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which at the time of the related transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss.

15
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

3.16

317

3.18

SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)
Deferrad tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward
unused tax credit and unused tax iosses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax
credit and unused tax losses can be utilised, except where the deferred tax asset in respect
of deductible temporary difference which arises from the initial recognition cf an asset or
liability which at the time of the related transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

. taxabie profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow ail or part of the deferred income tax asset to be uilised. Previously
unrecognised deferred income tax assets are re-assessed at each consolidated balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is setled based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consclidated income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is aiso dealt
with in the equity account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the
Group to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
when the Group intends either settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or to
realise the assets and setle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future year in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit after tax for the year
attributable to ordinary shargholders of the Group {(after adjusting for the bonus and welfare
fund} by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax
attributable to ordinary equity helders of the Group {after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that
would ke issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Group if one party has the ability to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions, or when the Group and other party are under common
control or under common significant influence. Related parties can be enterprises or
individuals, including close members of their families.

16
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

4,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Cash in banks

Cash equivalents [
TOTAL

BOY-DN/HN

VND

Ending balahce  Beginning balance
94,386,350 26,148,900
91,996,599,665 72,308,773,442
110,000,000,000 84,000,000,000
202,090,986,015 156,334,923,342

(") Cash equivalents represent term deposits with original maturities of less than three
months and 2arn interest at the rates from 2.9% fo 3% p.a.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT

Held-to-maturity investments (*)

Ending balance

9,012,854,795

VD
Beginning balance

8,000,000,000

{*) Held-to-maturity investments represent short-term deposits at commercial banks with
original maturity of more than three months and less than one year; and earn interest at

the rates ranging from 3.9% to 4.9% p.a.

The Group pledged a part of its held-to-maturity investments to secure the short-term

loans obtained from banks (Note 19).

SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Short-term
- Box-Pak Vietham Co,, Ltd
- YFY Packaging {Ha Nam) Co., Ltd
- Vinh Hung Dat Service Trading
Production Go., Lid

- Others
TOTAL

Provision for doubtful short-term receivables

NET

Long-term
- Thanh Cong Energy Service Corporation
- Lan Vy Truc Transport Ca., Ltd

- Others
TOTAL

17

VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance
55,320,591,810 38,266,566,525
26,505,207 606 20,783,736,040
24,381,631,740 22,898,872,550
422 414 507 811 295,669 868,307
528,621,938,967 377,627,043,422
(7.163,722,247) (7,165,151,756)
521,458,216,720 370,461,891,666
5,168,999,088 8,614,999,990
1.473,045,000 864,600,000
1,154,518 636 2,790,906,166
7,796,563,622  12,270,506,156




DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

6. SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

BOS-DN/HN

Details of movement of provision for doubtful short-term receivables are as follows:

Beginning balance
Provision during the year
Utilisation and reversal during the year

Ending balance

7. SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPFLIERS

Thanh Cong Energy Service Corporation
Hung Duy Trading Technology Service Import
and Export Co., Lid

Phuc Thang Tay Ninh Company Limited

Cthers
TOTAL

8. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Goods in transit
Finished goods
Work in process
Tools and supplies

TOTAL

18

VND

Current ysar Previous year
{7,165,151,756) (6,592,619,327)
(165,597 ,266) (572,532 429}
167,026,775 -
(7,163,722,247) (7,165,151,7586)

Ending balance

€,000,000,000

VND
Beginning balance

6,000,000,000

5.385,600,000 -
3,791,051,000 -
24,204,507,252 9,062,525 635
38,381,158,252 15,062,525,635
VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance

170,801,612,703

257,856,917,574

118,030,934,411 28,858,933,958
25,366,883,251 23,5637,225,329
347,013,233 264,341,340
114,309,107 250,939,499
314,660,752,708  310,778,358,100
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BO9-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended
10. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
VND
Computer software Others Total
Cost:
Beginning balance 82,602 450 616,731,800 699,334,250
New purchases - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Ending balance 82,602,450 676,731,800 759,334,250
in which:
Full amortised 82,602,450 306,231,800 388,634,250
Accumulated amortisation:
Beginning balance (82,602,450) (334,600,339) (417,202,789)
Amortised for the year - (65,601,786) (65,601,786)
Ending balance (82,602,450) (400,202,125) {482,804 575)
Net carrying amount:
BEQII"II'III"IQ balance - 282, 131,461 232,131 461
Ending balance - 276,529,575 27‘6,529,675
1. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
VND
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Construction of Packaging Factory 9,872,660,353 -
Construction of Giao Long Factory - Stage |l 8,669,481,325 -
Construction of Giao Long Factory - Stage | - 3,834,542 845
Others - 014,924,153
TOTAL 18,342,150,678 4,749,466,998
12. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
Ending balance Beginning balance
Interest Cost  Interest Cost
(%} VND (%) VIND
Tan Cang Giao Long
Joint Stock Company (%) 26% 4,531,831,288 26% 3,415,843,853
TOTAL 4,531,631,286 3,415,843,853

{* Tan Cang Giao Long Joint Stock Company, is a joint stock company incorporated the
ERC No. 13009990134 issued by the DPI of Ben Tre Province on 12 August 2015, The
Company's head office is located at No. 126, Long Thanh Hamlet, Giac Long

“"Comimung, Chau Thanh District, Ben Tre. Tha current principal activities of the

Company are providing port operation and transportation services.
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

12,

13.

14.

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)

Detaiis of this investment in an associate is as follows:

Cost of investment:
Beginning and ending balances

Accumulated share in post-acquisition profit of the associate:

Beginning balance

Share in post-acquisition profit of the associate for the year

Ending balance

Net carrying amount:
Beginning balance

Ending balance

PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term

Tools and supplies
Mainfenance expenses
Insurance fees

Cthers

Long-term
Teols and supplies
Land rental fee

Qthers
TOTAL

SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

Cther parties
- VIPA Lausanng SA
- Amarica Chung Nam LLC
- Peitta Papierrecycling BV
- Qthers

Related parties (Note 28)

TOTAL

21

Ending balance

13,787 430,547
£6,977,316,780
4,794,771,670
1,977,937,314

BO9-DN/HN

VND

2,600,000,000

815,843,853
1,115,787,433

1,931,631,288

3,415,843,853

4,531,631,286

VND

Beginning bafance

12,839,624,593
6,392,019,608
4,669,368,930
718,688,797

37,401,783 1,068,527,258
12,989,698,881 14,418,822,161
12,900,737,498 10,959,572,371

- 3,373,324 880

88,961,383 85,924,930

26,777,129,428 27,258.,446,754
VND
Ending balance Beginning balance

402,043,539,189

225,553,361,250

97,033,746,152  17,190,610,010
20,816,246,980 i
18800,329,740  13,068,062,518
265393 216,317  195,294,688,722
6,771,380,000 4,356,000,000
408,814,919,189  229,909,361,250
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15.

16.

DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BO9-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended
SHORT-TERM ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS
VND
Ending balance Beginning balance
Xiamen Haixia Supply Chain Development Lid 444,596,103 -
Thanh Dat Co., Ltd 411,853,750 -
Dongguan Yuguang Imports and Exports
Trading Ce., Ltd 346,303,350 -
Nanyang trade (HK) Co., Ltd 345,397,668 -
Kwok Fung (Sino HK) Enterprise Ltd - 2,826,306,086
Jinhong Industrial (Hong Kong) Lid - 2,114,276,124
Others 562,619,102 134,676,280
TOTAL 2,110,769,973 5,075,258,490
STATUTORY OBLIGATION
VND
ncraase Dacrease
Beginning balance in year in year Ending balance
Corporate
income tax 24,553,467,771 18,136,857,854 (35,026,674,753) 7,663,750,872
Personal
income tax 218,457,035 - 7,974,491,307 (7.941,374,072) 251,574,270
Value added
tax 7,110,332,873 114,493,181,564 (114,766,590,066) 6,836,915,371
TOTAL 31,882,2567,679 140,604,630,725 (157,734,647,891) 14,752,240,513

17.

18.

SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Giao Long Factory - Stage Il
Interest expense

Cthers
TOTAL

OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES

Commission fee

Bonus for the Boards of Directors and Supervision

Others
TOTRL ™

VND
Ending balance Beginning balance
6,568,632,489 6,938,450,651
1,194,882,318 2,956,164,384
51,819,887 1,829,299,831
1,803,534,674 11,723,914,866
VND
Ending balance Beginning balance
2,160,767,135  2,330,067,549
447,717,287 185,675,595
15,214,000 327,741,692
2,623,608,422 2,843,474,836 °
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

20. OWNERS’ EQUITY (continued)

20.2  Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends

Share capital
Beginning balance
Increase in share capital

Ending balance

Dividends

Dividends declared

Dividends paid by cash

Issuance of new share for dividend payment

20.3 Shares

Authorised shares

Issued and fully paid shares
Ordinary shares

Shares in circulation
Ordinary shares

204  Earnings per share

BO9-DN/HN
VD
Current year Frevious year
559,957,830,000 413,515,490,000
- 146,442,340,000
559,957,830,000 559,957,830,000
108,752,556,000 89,592,570,000
108,752,556,000 -
- 89,502 570,000

Number of shares

Ending balance  Beginning balance

55,905,783

55,995,783

55,898,763

55,995,783
55,995,783

55,995,783

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per

share computations:

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders
Less: Bonus and welfare fund (%)

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary
sharegholders for basic earnings (VND)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the year (shares)}

Basic and diluted earnings per share (VND)

Current year Prsvious year
391,923,587, 886 182,403,460,058
- (3,631,752, 324)

391,823,587 888 178,771,707,733
56,995,783 55,995,783
6,999 3,193

(") Net profit used to compute eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
adjusted following the actual allocation to Bonus and welfare funds from 2019's
undistributed eamings as approved in the Annual General Meefing 2019's Resolution

dated 26 June 2020,

Profit used to compute eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
not adjusted for the allocation to bonus and welfare fund from the 2020 profit as the
Resolution of the Shareholders Meeting on the distribution of the profit after tax of the

current year is not yet available.

" There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary sh'ares'sm'

between the reporting date and the date of completion of these consolidated financial

stafements.
26
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOY-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

20. OWNERS’ EQUITY (continued)

20.5 Use of funds raised from the shares issurance for existing shareholders

According to Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharehoiders No. 01/NQ-DHDGD dated
7 June 2018, the Company has offerad 3,445,977 shares for existing shareholders, the net
cash proceeds from the placement were used for invest in the construction of Giao Long
Paper Factory Phase 2.

Detail of issuance:

No.  Content Defaif
1 Name of share offering DongHai Joint Stock Company of
Ben Tre
2 Type of shares Ordinary shares
3 Par value VND 10,000/ share
4 Number of share registered for offering 3,445,977 shares
5 Number of share issuance 3,445,977 shares
8 Cash proceeds frorm share issuance : VND 62,027,585,000
7 Total expenses incurred for the private
placement . VND 198,158,300
8 Net proceeds from the private placement VND 61,828,427,700
9 Start date of the offering 5 December 2018
10 Compietion date of the offering 16 January 2019

The use of funds raised from the shares issurance;

VND
Costs relevant lo the project Amount
Jiangsu Huadong Paper Machinery Co., Ltd 7.002,033,328
Yong Jia Yu (VietNam) Technology Technical Co., Lid 5,242,553 675
ABB Lid 4,672,254,000
Andritz Technologies H.K.Limited 4,072,840,000
Dueng Mhat Environment Technology and Construction Investment
Company Limited 3,815,257,135
Andritz {China) Ltd 2,898,272,320
Phu An khang Investment Construction Co. Ltd 2,857,503,373
UMW HT TB Company Limited 2,063,820,000
Dai Hung Cuong Trading & Services Co., Ltd 1,537,803,336
Minh Phat Mechanical Service Trading Co., Ltd 1,779,107 887
Others 12,593,887,800
TOTAL 48,535,332,654

Accordingly, the net cash proceeds from the issuance of ordinary shares to existing
shareholders were used for invest in the construction of Giao Long Paper Factory Phase 2
amounting to VND 13,293,085,046.

27
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

21.

21.1

21.2

22

23.

REVENUES

Revenue from sale of goods

Gross revenus

Of which:
Safe of finished goods
Sale of machinery squipment
Sale of raw materials

Sales reduction

Of which:
Sale returns

Net revente

OFf which:
Sale of finished goods
Sale of machinery equinment
Sale of raw materials

Finance income

Forgign exchange gains
Interest income
Others

TOTAL

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of finished goods sold

Cost of machinery eguipment sold

Cost of raw materials sold

TOTAL

FINANCE EXPENSES

Interest expense

~ Foreign exchange losses

Trade discount

TOTAL

28

BOS-DN/HN
VND
Current year Previous year
2,887,713,712,68%  1,430,030,972,251
2,885980,077,653  1,4256,726,927,113
1,690,563,638 1,478,700,000
43,071,400 1,825,345,138
(143,188,500} (144,865,700)
(143,188,500) (144,865,700)
2,887,570,524,18% 1,429,886,106,551
2,885836,889,153  1,426,582,061,413
1.690,563,636 1,478,700,000
43,071,400 1,825,345,138
VND
Current vear Previous year
7.877,446,848 1,471,093,181
1,835,422,200 2,311,914 838
136,738,583 26,910,564
9,949,607,631 3,809,918,583
VND
Current year Previous year
2,337,989,837,585 1,123,535,680,864
1,326,000,000 1,185,000,000
37,496,753 1,803,593,085
2,338,353,334,338  1,126,524,279.929
VND
Current year Previous year
38,736,882,563 29,931,705,195
1,913,939,804 - 275,511,128
60,000,000 -
40,710,822,367 30,207,216,323
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

24,

25,

26.

SELLING EXPENSES AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Selling expenses

Expense for external services
Labour costs

Tools and supplies
Depreciation and amortisation
Others

General and adminlstration expenses
Expense for external services

Labour costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Others
TOTAL

PRODUCTION AND OPERATING COSTS

Raw materiais

Expense for exdernal services

Depreciation and amortisation (Notes 2 and 10)
Labour costs

Others
TOTAL

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES

Other Income
Cormpensation
Gains on disposal of fixed assets

Others

Other expenses
Losses from write-off of fixed assets

Others
NET OTHER PROFIT
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VD

Current year Previous year
Current year Previous year
87,998,170.,475 45,009,092,405
69,405,698,600 36,800,554,569
11,848,311,845 4,547 539,187
2,882,450,384 3,842,334 516
2,370,448,476 2,258,293 843
1491,261,161 1,560,370,190
23,754,855,757 19,778,850,170
10,203,228,811 €,386,360,274
8,148,827,488 7,726.509,638
1,401,659,168 1,321,988,895
4,001,340,290 4,343 891,363
111,753,026,232 63,787,942,575

VMND

Current year Previous year

1,873,032,645,382
521,701,035,962
105,221,930,762
103,1€5,312,021
176,353, 900,429

1,097,431,149,283
262,252,885,033
§8,612,149,317
68,191,885,480
14,651,432,517

2,779474,824,536

1,501,139,501,630

VND

Current year Previous year
3,995,596,254 12,188,273,828
3,217,963,861 8,437 660,758
- 3,265,708,374

777,632,393 484,914,696
753,786,831 29,511,039
596,329,541 -
157,457,290 29,511,039
3,241,809,423 12,158,762,789
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

27.

27.1

27.2

CORPORATE INCOME TAX
The Group is obliged to pay corporate income tax ('CIT") at the rate of 20% of taxable profit.

Expanded investment project of the Company:

s In respect of Giao Long Paper factory - Phase 1, the Company is entitted tc CIT
exemption for three years from its first year having taxable income (2013 - 2015) and a
reduction of 50% for the following five years (2016 - 2020). These tax incentives are
applied for the remaining years from 2015; and

o In respect of Giao Long Paper factory - Phase 2, the Company is enfitled to CIT
exemption for three years from its first year having taxable income (2020 - 2022) and a
reduction of 50% for the following five years {2023 - 2027).

The Group’s fax returns are subject t0 examination by the tax authorities. Because the
application of tax faws and reguiations to many types of transactions is susceptible to
varying interpretations, the amounts reported in the consefidated financial statements could
be changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

CIT expense
VD
Current year Previous year

Reconciliation between CIT expense and the accounting profit multiplied by CIT rate is
presented below:

VND

Current yeer Previous year

Accounting profit before tax : 410,060,545,739  221,151,192,94%

At CIT rate applicable: 82,012,109,148 44,230,238,580
Adjustments: '

Non-deductible expenses 672,407,444 534,968,547

Shares of ptofit of associate (223,157 ,487) {183,168,771)

CIT exemption and reduction (64,324401,252)  (5,854,305,475)

CIT expense 18,136,957,853 38,747,732,891

Current tax

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. Taxable profit of the
Group for the year differs from the accounting profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are faxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance
sheet date.
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

BO9-DN/HN

Significant fransactions with related parties during the current year and previous year were

as follows:

Related parties

Tan Cang Giao
Long Joint Stock
Company

Dai Thien Loc
Corporation

Reiationship Transaclions

Associate Purchases of

goods and
services

The same Pirchases of

member of Board gocds and

of Directors services
("BOD"}

Current year

26,691,157,500

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and Management:

Individuals

Luoeng Van Thanh
Le Ba Phuong
Ho Thi Song Ngoc

Mguyen Thanh Nghia
Le Quang Hiep
Nguyen Phan Dung
Tatsuyuki Ota

Marco Martinelli

TOTAL

As at balance sheet dates, amount due to a related party were as follows:

Reiated party

Shori-term trade payable

Tan Cang Giao
L.eng Joint Stock
Company

Relationship

Pasition

Chairman/Deputy
General Director
Deputy Chairman/
General Diractor

Deputy General

Director
Member of BOD
Member of BOD
Member of BOD
Member of BOD
Member of BOD

Transaction

Purchases of
goods and
services

31

VND
Previous vear

11,618,200,000

1,177,489,964

VND

Remuneration
Current year Previous year
1,360,345,293 1,029,348,829

1,700,104,623 1,314,275,657
896,066,937 684,461,413
188,000,000 185,000,000
188,000,000 195,000,000
167,000,000 195,000,000
167,000,000 195,000,000
21,000,000 -
4,677,516,853 3,808,085,899

Ending balance Beginning balance

6,771,380,000

4,356,000,000
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DongHai Joint Stock Company of BenTre ‘BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases its assets under operating lease arrangements. The future rental amounts
due under such operating leases after 31 December 2020 were as follows:

VND
Ending balance Beginning balance

Less than 1 year 2,407,751,128 4.478,588,357
From 1 to 5 years 9,631,004,513 9,274,353,428
Over 5 years 30,417,490,623 29,912,591,226
TOTAL 42,456,246,264 43,665,533,011

30. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There is no significant event occurring after the balance sheet date which would require
adjustments or disclosures to be made in the consolidated fina
Group.

ancial statements of the
o-,o CONG TY O )

\ Pham The Tai \ Le Thi Hoang Hue Le Ba Phuong
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director
%
29 March 2021

32







Ben Tre, April 19™ 2021
Confirmation Of Representative




